T.R. Paul Academy of Arts and Knowledge
aka Northern Colorado Academy of Arts and Knowledge
4800 Wheaton Drive, Fort Collins, CO 80525

Board Meeting Agenda for Monday, December 18, 2017 at 4:30pm
4800 Wheaton Drive, Fort Collins, CO 80525
Room 100B
Conference Line: 712-432-6100 pin 558-47941

l. OPENING SECTION
A Call to Order
B. Board Members in attendance: Kilbon () Kornfeld () Manguso () Shapland ( )
Walser ()
C. Approval of Agenda
Motion by: Seconded by:
Kilbon (') Kornfeld () Manguso () Shapland () Walser ()

. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

I1l.  REPORTS
A. Secretary’s Report
Motion to approve minutes from November 27 board meeting.
Motion by: Seconded by:
Kilbon (') Kornfeld () Manguso () Shapland () Walser ()
B. Treasurer’s Report
Motion to approve October financials.
Motion by: Seconded by:
Kilbon (') Kornfeld () Manguso () Shapland () Walser ()
C. Executive Summary

IV. NEW BUSINESS
A. UIP Draft
B. 18-19 School Calendar Review
C. Early Access Enrollment Policy
Motion to approve updated early access enroliment policy.

Motion by: Seconded by:
Kilbon () Kornfeld () Manguso () Shapland () Walser ()

D. PTO Bylaws
Motion to approve updated PTO bylaws.
Motion by: Seconded by:

Kilbon () Kornfeld () Manguso () Shapland () Walser ()



OLD BUSINESS

A. Auditor RFP
Motion to approve recommendation to request proposals for auditor.
Motion by: Seconded by:
Kilbon (') Kornfeld () Manguso () Shapland () Walser ()

B. Service Provider RFP
BOARD MEETING

A. Agenda Items

a. Enrollment Policy Review/Update
b. School Calendar Approval

CLOSING SECTION
A. Motion to Adjourn
Motion by: Seconded by:
Kilbon () Kornfeld () Manguso () Shapland () Walser ()



Executive Summary
12.15.17 Board of Directors Meeting

Unified Improvement Plan

The School Accountability Committee has submitted the first draft of the UIP to CSI for review and
feedback. The final draft will be submitted in January. Next year, CSl is moving up the date for the UIP
submission to the fall, to better align to schools’ strategic planning processes.

Assessment

MOY testing for both MAP and Dibels will wrap up prior to winter break. Data will be analyzed with
teachers at the January 8 PD, and results will be reported at the January board meeting. CSl is also
assisting with some data analysis on BOY to MOY test results.

ACCESS testing for English Language Learners will take place in January. This is a computer-based,
standardized assessment required by the state that Ms. Hutchinson will give to our small group of
students who marked NEP or LEP on the home survey.

The internal schedule is being set for this spring’s CMAS state assessment, as well as the
accommodation groups. Unique Accommodation Requests were submitted to CSI last week, and
accommodations will be put into Pearson Access in January. The testing window is April 9-27. Training
for teachers on administering the assessment, as well as security protocols, will be held on February 28.
More information on the internal state testing plan in Ms. Montoya’s absence will be reported to the
board at the January or February.

Teaching and Learning Goals

There are updates to the professional development goal. All teachers have either attended an outside
professional development training, or are now scheduled to attend one in the winter/spring.
Additionally, a plan is set for our next two whole-staff PD days. On January 8 we are analyzing our MOY
MAP data in teams and working out kinks in our Rtl process, as well as doing some coaching sessions for
the math and literacy curriculum. Ms. Rolf and Ms. Ruby are also presenting information to staff on from
their Formative and Summative Assessment training. On March 9, we are

We are also in the process of planning next year’s preservice professional development time. There will
be designated days for new teachers, should we have new hires. While we will have reviews on the
curriculum, assessment protocols, evaluation process, and school-wide expectations, the hope is to
focus more on pedagogical professional development that align with our mission and vision, such as
growth mindset strategies for the classroom and restorative practice.

Student Academic Growth
75% of TPAAK students will reach NWEA-MAP projected growth measures for math and reading by the
end of the 2017-2018 school year.

TPAAK students will have a median growth percentile of at least 50 on the 2018 ELA CMAS assessment
and a median growth percentile of 38 on the Math CMAS assessment.



Strategies/Activities Responsible Resources Completion Date BOD Report Date
Parties
Review BOY MAP data Montoya CSI — Aislinn October 2017 v | October 2017
Walsh
Identify areas of strength Montoya, CSI — Aislinn October 2017 v | October 2017
and improvement in reading | teaching staff Walsh
and math Andy Franko
Identify achievement and Montoya, School October 2017 v | October 2017
growth goals teaching staff Accountability
Committee
Correlate MAP results to Montoya CSI — Aislinn January 2018 January 2018
CMAS assessment Walsh
projections Andy Franko
Review EQY MAP data and Montoya CSI — Aislinn May 2018 June 2018
goals Walsh
Review CMAS results and Montoya CSI — Aislinn August 2018 September 2018
goals Walsh
Andy Franko
Updates of progress to BOD | Montoya Csl ongoing October 2017,
January 2018,
May 2018,
September 2018

Teacher Professional Development

All TPAAK teachers will attend at least one off-site professional development training a targeted area of
academic instruction, and will receive credit for in-house professional development for ongoing
education and license renewal purposes.

Strategies/Activities Responsible Resources Completion Date BOD Report Date
Parties

Develop whole-staff Montoya, League of Charter | October 2017 \ | October/November
professional development Keigan, teaching | Schools, CSl, 2017
for year staff Tatonka, Andy

Franko
Staff goal setting Monday, Andy Franko September |

teaching staff 2017

Instructional reviews to Montoya, League of Charter | October 2017, v | n/a
guide areas of individual teaching staff Schools, CSI, January,
professional development Tatonka, Andy March, May

Franko 2018
Evaluations to guide areas of | Montoya Andy Franko Fall 2017 and v | n/a
individual professional Spring 2018
development
Individual teacher PD Montoya, League, CSI May 2018 v | ongoing

scheduling and tracking

Keigan, teaching
staff




Teacher Teaching staff League May 2018 ongoing
summary/presentation of

professional development

Develop whole-staff Montoya, League of Charter | June 2018 June 2018

professional development
for upcoming year

Keigan, teaching
staff

Schools, CSI,
Tatonka, Andy
Franko

Safe Schools Plan

Review and revise TPAAK’s school safety plan that is compliant with current legislation, that informs
planning, training and execution of all items related to the safety and wellbeing of our students.

Quarterly reports to the board: October, January, April, July

Strategies/Activities Responsible Resources Completion Date BOD Report Date
Parties
Formation of a School Safety Keigan, CSSRC August 2017 v | September 2017
Team Montoya
Review and update of Keigan CSSRC August 2017 v | September 2017
current EOP
Full staff training and Keigan, CSSRC CSSRC August 2017, 4 September 2017
targeted training for crisis ongoing
team for emergency
procedures
Hold regular table top Safety/Crisis CSSRC, | Love You | ongoing
exercises and training with Team, teaching | Guys Foundation
team, staff and students staff
Comprehensive Review of Safety/Crisis League, CSI, November 2017 |+ | December 2017
Safe School Plan Team CSSRC, CSSRC
School Safety
Planning
Checklist
Create timeline to fill gaps Safety/Crisis League, CSI, December 2017 January 2017
identified for completion Team CSSRC (updated)
prior to 18-19 preservice
Revise or create missing Safety/Crisis League, CSI, July 2018 March 2018, May
items for the TPAAK Safe Team CSSRC 2018, June 2018
Schools Plan

Retention and Recruitment

Continue to increase retention rates and recruitment for the 2018-19 school year. Retention rates
greater than 80% and recruitment higher than 100 students.

Strategies/Activities

Responsible
Parties

Resources

Completion Date

BOD Report Date




Schedule regular community Keigan, August 2017, September 2017,
events to engage the Montoya January 2018 February 2018
community
Increase communication Administration Facebook, Ongoing quarterly
with all stakeholders and teaching Bloomz, website,

staff Swift K12, events
Complete School Climate Keigan, teaching SoGo Survey, April 2018 June 2018
survey with parents and staff 16-17 survey
staff
Actively market in the Keigan, MadWire ongoing quarterly
community MadWire
Incentivize word of mouth Keigan, Board Budget November 2017 November 2017
referrals from current
families
Increase parent engagement | SAC, Ongoing quarterly

at the school

administration

Enroliment

Current Enrollment for 2018-19 (re-enrollment has not yet been announced)

&
Q_J"Q‘ 2 ‘o\\‘(& & o o
& & & QQ\\ & &
& & & \a & &
<° € S S & ?°
12| o 0 0 6 0 6
Fulk| o 0 0 18 0 18
1st]  as 4 5 5 0 45
nd| 38 0 0 2 0 40
ard| 43 5 0 2 0 45
ath| 34 3 0 0 0 34
sth] 31 1 0 3 0 34
total| 202 18 5 36 0 222
rre| 202 13 24 25.22 0 211.92
Enrollment for 17-18 as of 12/14/2016
Potential Re-Enroll New Applicants Total
1/2 K 0 1 1
Full K 0 11 11
1st 40 2 42
2nd 36 5 42
3rd 29 0 29
4th 29 1 30
5th 44 1 45
Total 178 21 199




COLORADO [ Mandatory
FORM # SPS-135
i EDAC APPROVED
m Department Of Educatlon Approved 6/2/2017 for 2017-2018

Log Out

T.R. PAUL

ACADEMY

OF ARTS & District: CHARTER SCHOOL INSTITUTE | OrgID: 8001 | School ID: 0657 |
KNOWLEDGE Framework: Performance Plan: Low Participation | Draft UIP

UIP 2017-18

Colorado's Unified I mprovement Plan for School

Table of Contents

Executive Summary

Improvement Plan Information

Narrative on Data Analysis and Root Cause Identification
Action Plans

Addenda

Executive Summary
How ar e students performing? Where will the school focus attention?

Priority Performance Challenges: Specific statements about the school's performance challenges (not
budgeting, staffing curriculum, instruction, etc.), with at least one priority identified for each
performance indicator (Achievement, Growth, PWR), where the School did not meet federal, state
and/or local expectations.

Name: Declining growth in math

Description: In 2017 we saw stagnant and slightly declining growth in math. The school's overall
MGP in 2016 was 25, and last year it was 24. Thisiswell below the state's MGP of 50. Subgroups
also saw low growth.

Name: ELA growth below state standards
Description: While student growth in ELA isincreasing, it still remains below the state average.

Name: Declining percentage of students meeting READ Act benchmarks

Description: From end of year 2016 to end of year 2017, the percentage of students at or above
benchmark READ Act requirements has decreased.

Why isthe education system continuing to have these challenges?



Root Causes: Statements describing the deepest underlying cause, or causes, or performance
challenges, that, if dissolved, would result in elimination, or substantial reduction of the performance
challenge(s).

Name: Lack of teacher training and resources for new math curriculum
Description: Teachers need adequate and ongoing training and appropriate resources and student
manipulatives in the Singapore math curriculum that was adopted in 2016.

Name: Inadequate professional development

Description: Teachers have not had proper and ongoing training in both curriculum and
instruction, specifically related to best practice in lesson planning, data analysis, differentiation, and
interventions.

Name: Failureto set accountability expectations and protocols
Description: There are no systemsin place regarding standards-based lesson planning, progress
monitoring, data analysis, teacher evaluations, and communication with parents.

Name: Lack of standards-based and school-wide literacy curriculum

Description: For the past two years, teachers had to find their own resources for literacy
instruction, or adapt from the 10 year old curriculum that was no longer aligned to standards. There
was no vertical alignment from grade to grade, nor was there even consistency within the same
grade level.

Major Improvement Strategies

Major Improvement Strategies: Identify the major improvement strategy(s) that will address the root
causes determined in the data narrative.

Name: Implement a standards-based, common K-5 literacy curriculum

Description: All teacherswill provide instruction in the EngageNY literacy curriculum. The
curriculum is more rigorous that what has been taught over the last two years, and in grades 3-5, the
writing component is based on the texts they read in class. Teachers will be properly trained prior to
the school year on the structure of the curriculum, as well as the scope and sequence, how to
implement the curriculum on adaily basis, and how to use various assessments within the
curriculum, including performance tasks. Teachers will aso work with teammates on a year-long
pacing guide. At mid-year, teachers will receive arefresher training and have the opportunity to
discuss what is working well with new the curriculum, what might be a challenge, how
differentiation can happen within the curriculum, and teach sample lessons with constructive
feedback. Teachers will receive off-site training for literacy instructional strategies, formative and
summative assessment, and how to differentiate for both gifted and talented students and special
education students. Teachers will give Director of Teaching and Learning weekly/unit literacy
lesson plans that outline standards, learning targets, differentiation, and assessment.

Name: Establish teacher accountability expectations

Description: Teacherswill be required to turn in weekly or unit lesson plans that include
standards-based learning targets, differentiation strategies, and how assessment will be used to
further inform instruction. Prior to this requirement, teachers will receive training at preservice
regarding the essential components of alesson plan. Teachers will also be trained on the state's
Teacher Quality Standards and how they will be evaluated on them. Teachers will receive training
on both DibelsNext and MAPS, specifically on how to access and utilize various reports to inform
instruction. Teachers will meet as primary and intermediate teams every other week have have data



discussions with a data protocol analysis form to guide the discussions led by the team leads. At the
meetings, teachers will also continue to learn how to use MAP Skills as a progress monitoring tool
and additional way to find and teach to gaps within student learning. Team leads will attend
additional off-site training regarding MAP testing and data analysis. Teachers will set an individual
and team goal at the beginning of the year and have Instructional Reviews four times throughout the
school year with the Director of Teaching & Learning to discuss and update goals. Teachers will
communicate consistently with parents about academics and events in the classroom, and ways
families can support learning at home.

Name: Provide professional development and adequate resources for math instruction
Description: Teacherswill receive training prior to the start of the school year on the Singapore
math curriculum purchased ayear ago. Additional resources including text books, assessment
guides, online guides, and manipulatives that correspond with the curriculum will be purchased for
teacher and student use in the classrooms. Teachers will utilize MAP Skills as an additional tool to
progress monitor student growth and provide interventions. Teachers will receive a mid-year
training on the math curriculum to discuss what is going well, where difficulties might lie, and how
to best differentiate for all learners. Teachers will attend off-site training on math instruction and
how to use MAP Skills to provide additional support and interventions. Teachers will go beyond
just the practice of math skills but will also instruct students to use critical thinking skills to solve
problems, both within the curriculum through structured problem solving guides, as well as when
dealing with real-life situations. Teachers will give Director of Teaching and Learning weekly/unit
math lesson plans that outline standards, learning targets, differentiation, and assessment.

Access the School Performance Framework here:http://www.cde.state.co.us/school view/performance

Improvement Plan | nfor mation

The school/district is submitting this improvement plan to satisfy requirementsfor:
v State Accreditation

Narrative on Data Analysisand Root Cause | dentification
Description of school Setting and Processfor Data Analysis

Provide a brief description of the school to set the context for readers. Include the general process for
developing the UIP and participants (e.g., SAC involvement). The description may include demographics
and local context, such as location, performance status, notable recent events or changes, stakeholders
involved in writing the UIP, and an overview of the general process.

School Background

In it's eleventh year as a charter school in Fort Collins, TR Paul Academy of Arts & Knowledge
continues to grow as a strong arts-based elementary school. With a move to a new facility in the
summer of 2017, and a new co-director leadership model, the school continues to enhance the
educational experience of its students. The school is now on a single level with arobust library in the
center, giving it a community feel that is appropriate for an elementary school. The new facility isin a
quiet neighborhood and is no longer right next to a district elementary school. Overall, the move has
been a positive one, and for thefirst timein its history, TPAAK met and exceeded it's enrollment


http://www.cde.state.co.us/schoolview/performance

projections for the 2017-2018 school year. With the student retention rate increasing from 65% to 77%
from the previous school year, the school also recruited 97 new students in the current school year.

While teacher retention has been a concern in the past, the school has been diligently working to show
staff that they are valued. Teacher retention increased from 67% to 95% from the past year, largely
due to stability, compensation increases, clearer job expectations, and an investment in professional
development. While TPAAK still has work to do to show improvements in academic growth, the new
leader ship has confidence in the current staff and the plansin place to address the issues, as
highlighted in this unified improvement plan.

Continuing its model of fine artsintegration, TPAAK students participate in 90 minutes each of music,
art, and wellness/physical education per week, and an additional 30 minute enrichment block at the
end of the day for a truly robust arts education. Through the fine arts integration and enrichment
opportunities, students are provided with the tools that instill confidence in presentation and
communication to an audience of peers, teachers, family, and community members.

Visual Art at TPAAK

All students benefit from the arts, especially students needing more concrete, visual, and kinesthetic
experiences for successful learning. At TPAAK, the integrated fine arts and visual arts program
strengthens learning transfer. The arts at TPAAK are not only about producing tangible artifacts, but
also skill development and problem solving. TPAAK adheres to the proposition that arts integration
produces better readers, better writers, and better speakers. Sudents frequently place in local,
regional, and national art contests, including the National Western Sock Show Art Competition, Music
K-8 National Magazine Cover Contest, Federal Junior Duck Stamp Contest, and even Doodle for
Googlein 2011, to name just a few.

Music at TPAAK

Music, like literacy, allows students to experiment with rhythm, words, tempo, and melody. Musical
notation and reading the meaning in music strongly correlates to moving from text to meaning in
literacy. It isthe conviction at TPAAK that music produces, besides the gifts of music itself, strong
readers, writers, and presenters. In addition to many performances at the school, the TPAAK band has
marched in the Windsor Harvest Festival and S. Patrick’s Day Parade, and the Dragon Scales Choir
has performed at Colorado Eagles hockey games and the Foothills Mall, as well as for local
community members, such as at Parkwood Estates Nursing Home.

Wellness at TPAAK

Research shows that physical activity stimulates the brain and improves academic performance.
TPAAK students engage in 90 minutes of physical education and wellness per week, in addition to 45+
minutes of recess per day. Through our wellness program, students are not only getting physically fit,
but are also learning how to take care of themsel ves by making healthy choices. Sudents have the
opportunity to enjoy all that the Colorado outdoors and mountains have to offer, with planned field
trips like hiking Devil’ s Backbone or snowshoeing in Rocky Mountain National Park.

Enrichment at TPAAK

All students get to choose enrichment activities during our 30 minute enrichment block at the end of the
day. Enrichment choices change each trimester and range from the fine arts, math, science, and any
other creative topic our teachers can dream of. During this time, students get to choose two options
froman array of options including Dragon Scales choir, band, or orchestra, to jewelry-making,
wood-working, oil pastel drawing, dramatic scenery, foreign language and American Sgn Language,
wilderness and safety, and many others.

TPAAK also offers a wide variety of after school activities, including Drama Club, which has put on
performances of Sherlock Holmes, Aladdin, and A Midsummer Night's Dream, in addition to scenery
production, Lego Robotics, dance, cheerleading, and chess, plus music lessons in many different



instruments.

Special Education Program at TPAAK

With a focus on inclusion, our Special Education program continues to follow TPAAK’ s vision of each
student reaching their potential. The program takes into consideration the academic supports needed
for every child to meet their specialized goals across all core academic subjects and works to foster
enthusiastic and self-confident learners. The Special Education program at TPAAK also concentrates
heavily on the social and emotional needs of special education students and ensures that every student
feels comfortable in, and out of, their classroom environment.

Gifted and Talented Program at TPAAK

All students in second grade are screened each year for the Gifted/Talented Program through the use
of a non-verbal test. Sudents new to TPAAK in grades 3-5 are also screened. A score that approaches
the 90th percentile will result in areferral for further testing. Parents, teachers, and students may also
make referrals for testing.

Our teachersreceive training in recognizing traits of gifted children, as well as accommodating the
needs of these children. GT services may be delivered in the classroom by the homeroom teacher or as
a pull-out with a small group of GT students, whichever best meets their needs. Through an advanced
learning plan (ALP), teachers and staff can assess gifted student growth and social-emotional
development. ALPs are reviewed yearly and may be revised at any time.

English Learnersat TPAAK

Students who come from homes in which English is not the primary language, dual-language homes, or
students who have recently immigrated to the United States, are assessed within the first 30 days at
school to determine their English Language proficiency level. This assessment then provides teachers
and parents with information about what English Language skills the student may need more
instruction in. TPAAK then provides specialized, small-group instruction to these English Language
Learners. Theinstruction is aimed at helping the student to access content knowledge, while also
working to increase their English language skills. TPAAK’ s English Language program follows the
World-Class Instructional Design and Assessment (WIDA) standar ds that the Colorado Board of
Education has adopted as the Colorado English Language Proficiency (CELP) standards.

Academics at TPAAK

In addition to fine arts integration, TPAAK students also receive rigorous, daily instruction in
Colorado Academic Standards-based reading, writing, math, and science. Reading and writing are
taught to our students through the EngageNY curriculum. Reading and writing are also integrated
throughout the day in all subject areas, and teachers give students time to dive into books to cultivate a
true love for literacy.

Sngapore Math instruction is delivered through the Primary Mathematics curriculum. With this
curriculum, our students learn and master fewer mathematical concepts at greater detail with a
three-step learning process: concrete, pictorial, and abstract. Through this, they are becoming creative
thinkers who are preparing to be real-world problem solvers.

Through the Colorado Academic and Next Generation Science Standards, students engage in hands-on
activities and experiments based on the scientific method. Intermediate students are able to explore
how to ask scientific questions followed by presenting their understanding of the scientific process and
critical thinking in the spring Science Fair.

Whether studying the Ancient Greeks or Mesopotamia, TPAAK students learn about character, ethics,
empathy, and self-esteem through our Paragon curriculum. They step into the shoes of these great
historical figures through active projects, skits, musical performances, and distinctive artistic
expression. The social studies and sciences of all the great world civilizations are taught in this
interdisciplinary, project-based, and multicultural curriculum. Because the Paragon curriculum lends



itself to expression in the fine arts, students are given the opportunity to present their learning to the
community each quarter on Paragon Night. Families and the community are invited to school to enjoy
an evening of stage performances by several grade levels, and the opportunity to takein
mini-performances in the classrooms. Students show off their learning of world cultures through music,
dance, drama, visual arts, and the sciences, and are again exposed to performing in front of an
audience.

TPAAK has a devoted "WIN Time" (What | Need Time) each day for both primary and intermediate
students who might need interventions or extensionsin a particular subject area. Teachers deliver
interventionsin the classroom, and specialists also pull small groups of students for additional direct
instruction or interventions.

Assessment at TPAAK

Per READ Act requirements, K-3 students are assessed and progress monitored through DIBEL SNext
for reading fluency and comprehension. This school year, 4th and 5th graders are also being assessed
and progress monitored on DIBELSNext for school-wide consistency and data points. TPAAK also
made the switch this year from Scantron Performance Seriesto NWEA MAPS as the interim
assessment in math and reading, and teachers are receiving ongoing training on administering the
interim assessment and how to access and use the data. Research showed that the data from Scantron
was unreliable and difficult to analyze, and not based on normative data studies - a problemthat is
addressed by NWEA. Additionally, the school is using the progress monitoring feature MAP ills,
also offered by NWEA. Teachers give a variety of summative assessments through the curriculum, and
also regularly use formal and informal assessments to inform instruction.

I mprovement Planning Process

TPAAK's School Accountability Committee is responsible for reviewing the past UIP and making
recommendations for current priority improvement challenges, root causes, and improvement
strategies on the current UIP based on performance and SPF data presented by the Director of
Teaching & Learning. Specifically, the SAC isworking to devel op action steps and implementation
benchmarks surrounding parent engagement and academic growth. The Director of Teaching &
Learning will ultimately write the draft of the UIP, which will be edited, reviewed, and approved by the
SAC and then presented to the board of directors in December, to then be submitted to CS by January.
The SAC meets quarterly, in September, November, February, and April, and on an as-needed basis if
necessary. Members of the SAC include both Directors, the Sudent Services team, a primary teacher
and intermediate teacher, and three parent representatives, one of which is also a member of the
school's PTO. The school did not have an active SAC the past two years.

Prior Year Targets

Consider the previous year's progress toward the school targets. Identify the overall magnitude of the
school performance challenges.

Performance Indicator: Academic Growth

Prior Year Target: MGP in ELA on PARCC was 33.

Growth percentile goal for PARCC ELA will be 41 for 2016-2017.
Performance: Our MPG for PARCC ELA in 2016-2017 was 46.0, therefore we exceeded our goal of
41 by five points.



Prior Year Target: MGP in Math on PARCC was 25. Growth percentile goal for PARCC ELA will be
38 for 2016-2017.

Performance: Our MPG for PARCC Math in 2016-2017 was 24.0. We did not meet our goal of 38,
and decreased by one point from 2016-2015.

Academic Growth Reflection

We are still in the process of effectively implementing two of our Major Improvement Strategies:
"Teachers practice productive data interpretation and analysis" and "faculty will have the time and
training to implement data/instruction cycle." Though these two strategies are not yet at an efficient
and autonomous level with all staff, working towards them most likely played a part in exceeding our
PARCC ELA target.

Adopting a Sngapore math curriculumin 2016-2017 but not effectively training our teachersor giving
them appropriate resources to implement the curriculum did not help our growth in math.

Performance Indicator: Disaggregated Achievement

Prior Year Target: The Strategic goal is that by 2018-2019, the FR/L, Minority, and ELL students will
have the same level of growth (less than 3%) as non- FR/L, Minority, and ELL students. Data from
15-16 shows that the FR/L students and the non-FR/L students have only 2% between them in terms of
growth. The goal isto sustain thiswith FR/L and then decrease the existing gaps between Minority
(10%) and ELL (?).

Performance: FRL students increased their mean scale score by 10 pointsin 2015-2016 from 745 to
755.

Prior Year Target: Non-Minority students produced scores above those of minority students on
PARCC; moreover, the performance gap increased from 7.6 to 16.9. ELA minority dropped from 750.8
to 736.9. ELA non-minority dropped from 758.4 to 753.8.

The goal would be to see this gap be reduced in half to no more than 8.5.

Performance: Minority students achieved a mean scale score of 757 in PARCC ELA and 747 in Math.
Non-minorities scored 747 in ELA and 745 in Math. We met our goal as the gap was eliminated and
minorities exceeded the mean scal e score of non-minorities by 10 pointsin ELA and 2 pointsin Math.

Disaggregated Achievement Reflection

® All students can benefit from the implementation of improvement strategies surrounding teacher
efficacy in data analysis as well as consistent professional development of teachers. Whilein
2016-2017 these strategies were still in the early stages of implementation, they are currently
becoming more consistent school-wide, and the improvement in the mean scale scores of minorities
shows there is merit in continuing to grow and further refine these strategies.

Performance Indicator: Disaggregated Growth



Prior Year Target: Non-Minority students produced scores above those of minority students on
PARCC; moreover, the performance gap increased from 8.4 to 10.3. The gap was minority 736 and
non-minority 746.3. The goal would be to see this gap reduced by one-third to less than 7.5.
Performance: Minority students achieved a mean scale score of 757 in PARCC ELA and 747 in Math.
In ELA thisisan increased in the MSS of 20 points, and in Math, an increase of over 10 points.
Non-minorities scored 747 in ELA and 745 in Math. We met our goal as the gap was eliminated and
minorities exceeded the mean scale score of non-minorities by 10 pointsin ELA and 2 points in Math.

Disaggregated Growth Reflection

Beginning the implementation of improvement strategies surrounding teacher efficacy in data analysis
aswell as consistent professional development benefits all studentsin the classroom, and will continue
to do so as as we grow and refine these strategies.

Performance Indicator: Student Engagement

Prior Year Target: Over 95% of students will participate in the CMASPARCC testing. All opt out
students will be recorded in the system whether they are ELA, Math, or Science/Social Sudies
Performance: With 94% participation rate in ELA and Math and 85% participation in Science, we did
not meet our goal, though we met the accountability participation rate in all subjects.

Student Engagement Reflection

The major improvement strategy of "administrative protocols regarding testing will be clear and
implemented” helped to meet the goal of an accountability participation rate of over 95% in 2016-2017
and administrative protocols are currently not an issue.

Current Performance

Provide a description of the trend analysis that includes at |east three years of data (state and local data).
Trend statements should be provided in the four performance indicator areas and by disaggregated groups.
Trend statements should include the direction of the trend and a comparison (e.g. state expectations, state
average) to indicate why the trend is notable.

TPAAK received a Performance rating on the 2016 School Performance Framework, earning 53.2 out
of 100 possible points. The school met the state achievement expectations overall, and for each
disaggregated group as well, earning 77% of the possible points, The school did not meet state or
approached expectations on the growth indicator, only earning 37.5% of the possible points. This
section will address the areas in which the school did or did not meet expectations, and will also
address the magnitude of TPAAK's performance challenges.

Academic Achievement

In every content area and with respect to every subgroup of students large enough to be reported,
TPAAK earned a Meets or Exceeds rating for Academic Achievement on the SPF, earning 30.7 points
out of 40. Sate assessments reveal TPAAK students achieving above the state's 50th percentile by ten



or more points ELA, Math, and Science. Minority students on the ELA assessment exceed expectations
and earned a percentile rank of 86, while students eligible for free/reduced lunch prices (FRL) exceed
expectations on the Math assessment with a 92 percentile rank.

ELA and Math mean scale scores are trending positively, with a slight increase from 749 to 751 on
ELA and 743 to 746 on Math. Science scores increased 15 points from 611 to 626. Minorities and FRL
students saw even bigger gainsin ELA and Math. Minority students increased scores by 20 points on
ELA and 11 points on Math, and FRL students increased scores by 9 points on ELA and 17 points on
Math.

As a school, TPAAK historically has high academic achievement, and academic achievement in
2016-2017 remains strong, particularly in ELA. As a school 58% of our students Met or Exceeded
expectations with a mean scale score of 750. Of the 93 students who tested, eight of them were five or
less points away from meeting expectations. With the action plan we have to address student growth
(see below), these students, and hopefully many others, will move into the Met category. Math
achievement was not as strong as ELA on the state test. 42% of students Met or Exceeded expectations
with a mean scale score of 745. Eleven students were five or less points away from meeting

expectations. 3d grade had the highest performance of the three grades with 47% Met/Exceeded. See
Figure A in attachment. No specific targets were set in the area of academic achievement on last year's
UIP.

Academic Growth

TPAAK received an overall Approaching rating on the SPF for Academic Growth, earning 22.5 out
of out of 60 points. In ELA, the Median Growth Percentile (MGP) of 46 earned an Approaching rating,
but in Math, the MGP of 24 Does Not Meet. TPAAK's MPG increased in ELA from 33.5 to 46, but
decreased in Math from the already-low 25 to 24. Both ELA and Math MPGs are below the state
average of 50. Subgroups have insufficient numbers for reporting purposes, but out of students with
disabilities, 0% of students grew by a year or morein ELA, and 50% grew by a year in Math. 33% of
English language learners grew by a year or morein ELA, and 0% in Math.

On the 2016-2017 UIP, a growth goal was set for both ELA and Math. For ELA, the growth goal was
41, so the current MGP of 46 exceeds that goal by 5 points. On Math, the goal of 38 MGP was not met
with our current MPG of 24.The magnitude of this challenge is substantial and will be further
addressed in the priority performance challenges.

Scantron interim assessment data does not provide reliable growth data from year to year. NWEA
MAP follows a similar model to the Colorado Growth Model when measuring growth, and we look
forward to having reliable, school-wide growth data to look at in the coming years.

READ Act

Over the last three years, trends in READ Act data have increased then dlightly decreased. In
2014-2015, 73% of K-3 students Met or Exceeded benchmark standards in reading. 2015-2016 saw an
increase of 85% Met/Exceeded, and 2016-2017, 79% Met/Exceeded. See Figure B in attachment. In
14-15, 47.7% of students with a significant reading deficiency at the beginning of the year were moved
off of a READ plan by the end of the year. In 15-16, thisincreased to 65% of students moving off a
READ plan by the end of the year, but in 16-17, an additional three students were identified as SRD by
the end of the year. The slight dip in 2016-2017 of students meeting benchmark, as well as students not
moving off READ plans that year is most likely accredited to the lack of leadership stability in the
2016-2017 school year, low teacher efficacy in data analysis as well as inadequate professional



development surrounding that area, asis mentioned in the past performance challenges. Expectations
were also unclear for teachers regarding how to give the benchmark assessment, READ plan protocols
and progress monitoring.

Trend Analysis

Review the DPF and local data. Document any areas where the school did not at least meet state/federal
expectations.

TPAAK student growth is on a decline for math CMAS between 2016 and 2017. The MGP
for 2016 was 25, and in 2017 it was 24. Thisiswell below the state's MGP of 50.

Trend Direction: Decreasing - Notable Trend: Yes - Performance Indicator Target:
Academic Growth

TPAAK student growth isincreasing for ELA CMAS between 2016 and 2017. The MGP for
2016 was 33.5 and in 2017 was 46. While thisis a positive trend, the current MGP is still
below the state's MGP of 50.

Trend Direction: Increasing - Notable Trend: Yes - Performance Indicator Target: Academic
Growth

The percentage of K-3 TPAAK students meeting/exceeding reading benchmark standards by
the end of the school year has slightly decreased from the 2015-2016 to 2016-2017 school
years. 85% of K-3 students were at or above benchmark by end of year in 2015-2016, but
79% or at or above at the end of 2016-2017. In the 2014-2015 school year, 73% of students
were at or above benchmark by the end of the year.

Trend Direction: Increasing then decreasing - Notable Trend: Yes - Performance Indicator Target:
Academic Achievement (Status)

Priority Performance Challenges and Root Cause Analysis

Review the DPF and local data. Document any areas where the school did not at least meet state/federal
expectations. Priority Performance Challenges and Root Cause Analysis Priority Performance Challenges:
Identify notable trends (or a combination of trends) that are the highest priority to address (priority
performance challenges). No more than 3-5 are recommended. Provide arationale for why these
challenges have been selected and address the magnitude of the school's overall performance challenges.
Root Cause: Identify at least one root cause for every priority performance challenge. Root causes should
address adult actions, be under the control of the school, and address the priority performance challenge(s).
Provide evidence that the root cause was verified through the use of additional data. A description of the
selection process for the corresponding major improvement strategies is recommended.

Relationship of UIP Elements



Priority Performance Challenges

Declining growth in math

ELA growth below state standards

Declining percentage of students meeting READ
Act benchmarks

Root Causes

Root Cause

Lack of teacher training and resources for new
math curriculum

Failure to set accountability expectations and
protocols

Lack of standards-based and school-wide literacy
curriculum

Inadequate professional development

Failure to set accountability expectations and
protocols

Lack of standards-based and school-wide literacy
curriculum

Failure to set accountability expectations and
protocols

Inadequate professional development

Priority Performance Challenge: Declining growth in math

Lack of teacher training and resources for new math curriculum
Teachers need adequate and ongoing training and appropriate resources and student manipulatives
in the Singapore math curriculum that was adopted in 2016.

Failureto set accountability expectations and protocols
There are no systems in place regarding standards-based lesson planning, progress monitoring, data
analysis, teacher evaluations, and communication with parents.

Priority Performance Challenge: ELA growth below state standards

Lack of standards-based and school-wide literacy curriculum

For the past two years, teachers had to find their own resources for literacy instruction, or adapt
from the 10 year old curriculum that was no longer aligned to standards. There was no vertical
alignment from grade to grade, nor was there even consistency within the same grade level.



I nadequate professional development
Teachers have not had proper and ongoing training in both curriculum and instruction, specifically
related to best practice in lesson planning, data analysis, differentiation, and interventions.

Failureto set accountability expectations and protocols
There are no systems in place regarding standards-based lesson planning, progress monitoring, data
analysis, teacher evaluations, and communication with parents.

Priority Performance Challenge: Declining percentage of students meeting READ Act benchmarks

Lack of standards-based and school-wide literacy curriculum

For the past two years, teachers had to find their own resources for literacy instruction, or adapt
from the 10 year old curriculum that was no longer aligned to standards. There was no vertical
alignment from grade to grade, nor was there even consistency within the same grade level.

Failureto set accountability expectations and protocols
There are no systems in place regarding standards-based lesson planning, progress monitoring, data
analysis, teacher evaluations, and communication with parents.

I nadequate professional development
Teachers have not had proper and ongoing training in both curriculum and instruction, specifically
related to best practice in lesson planning, data analysis, differentiation, and interventions.

Provide arationale for why these challenges have been selected and addr ess the magnitude of the
overall performance challenges:

Declining growth in Math

Math growth on the state assessment continues to be well below the state's MGP, with a decline from
2016 to 2017. The magnitude of this performance challenge is significant, and the lack of teacher
professional development and resources for implementing a new math curriculum in the 2016-2017 school
year is evident by the stagnant growth in math.

ELA growth below state standards

While ELA growth increased from 33 in 2016 to 46 in 2017, it is still below the the benchmark for one
year of adequate growth.The magnitude of this performance challenge is not as significant as the math
growth issue, but it is still important to note that the lack of past professional development and a
standards-based, school-wide literacy curriculum can most likely account for the MGP being under the
state standard.

Declining percentage of students meeting READ Act benchmarks

From spring 2016 to spring 2017, the percentage of K-3 students at or above benchmark in reading
decreased from 85% to 79%. Additionally, three more students were identified as having a SRD and
READ plans at the end of the year in 2017, as opposed to 26 students moving off READ plans at the end



of 2017. The magnitude of this performance challenge is significant, particularly in the area of moving
students off READ plans.

Provide arationale for how these Root Causes wer e selected and verified:

Lack of teacher training and resources for new math curriculum

Teachers need adequate and ongoing training and appropriate resources and student manipulatives in the
Singapore math curriculum that was adopted in 2016. The training teachers received at the beginning of
the school year was not helpful, nor was it ongoing throughout the year. Teachers did not have enough
resources or student materials to fully and effectively implement the curriculum.

I nadequate professional development

Teachers have not had proper and ongoing training in both curriculum and instruction, specifically related
to best practice in lesson planning, data analysis, differentiation, and interventions. Leadership did not
followup on individual professional development plans or goals.

Failureto set accountability expectations and protocols

There are no systems or expectations in place regarding standards-based lesson planning, progress
monitoring, data analysis, teacher evaluations, and communication with parents. L eadership did not
consistently check on what teachers were doing and what was happening in classrooms.

Lack of standards-based and school-wide literacy curriculum

For the past two years, teachers had to find their own resources for literacy instruction, or adapt from the
ten year old curriculum that was no longer aligned to standards. There was no vertical alignment from
grade to grade, nor was there even consistency within the same grade level.

Action Plans

School Target Setting

Directions: Schools are expected to set their own annual targets for academic achievement, academic
growth, and postsecondary and workforce readiness. At a minimum, schools should set targets for each of the
performance indicators where state expectations are not met; targets should also be connected to prioritized
performance challenges. For each annual performance target, identify interim measures that will be used to
monitor progress toward the annual targets at least quarterly during the school year.

Priority Performance Challenge : Declining growth in math

Performance Indicator: Academic Growth

Measures/ Metrics:. M

Annual 2017-2018: CMAS growth in Math will be an MGP of 38.
Performance



Targets 2018-2019:

Interim Measuresfor 2017-2018:

Performance I ndicator:

Measures/ Metrics:

2017-2018:
Annual
Performance
Targets 2018-2019:

Interim Measuresfor 2017-2018:

CMAS growth in Math will be an MGP of 50.

We will track math growth throughout the year with
NWEA Map testing and the NWEA Map Skills
progress monitoring tool.

Disaggregated Achievement
M

60% of students with disabilities and English
language learners will Approach or Meet standards
on CMAS Math.

60% of students with disabilities and English
language learners will Approach or Meet standards
on CMAS Math.

We will track math progress throughout the year with
NWEA Map testing and the NWEA Map Skills
progress monitoring tool.

Priority Performance Challenge : ELA growth below state standards

Performance I ndicator:

Measures/ Metrics:

2017-2018:
Annual
Performance
Targets 2018-2019:

Interim Measuresfor 2017-2018:

Performance I ndicator:
Measures/ Metrics:

2017-2018:

Academic Growth

R

CMAS ELA growth will be at or above the state
average MGP of 50.

CMAS ELA growth will be above the state average
MGP of 50.

We track literacy growth throughout the year with
NWEA MAP testing and the MAP Skills progress
monitoring tool, as well as benchmark testing and
progress monitoring in DIBEL SNext.

Academic Achievement (Status)
R
60% of students with disabilities and English



Annual
Performance

Targets 2018-2019:

Interim Measuresfor 2017-2018:

language learners will Approach or Meet standards
on CMASELA.

60% of students with disabilities and English
language learners will Approach or Meet standards
on CMASELA.

We will track literacy progress throughout the year
with NWEA Map testing and the NWEA Map Skills
progress monitoring tool. as well as benchmark
testing and progress monitoring in DIBEL SNext.

Priority Performance Challenge : Declining percentage of students meeting READ Act benchmarks

Performance | ndicator:

Measures/ Metrics:

2017-2018:
Annual
Performance
Targets 2018-2019:

Interim Measuresfor 2017-2018:

Performance I ndicator:

Measures/ Metrics:

2017-2018:
Annual
Performance
Targets 2018-2019:

Interim Measuresfor 2017-2018:

Academic Achievement (Status)

R

83% of students K-5 will be at or above benchmark
per READ ACT requirements.

85% of students K-5 will be at or above benchmark
per READ ACT requirements.

We will track throughout the year using
DIBELSNext, LexiaCore 5, and lexile levels on
Reading A-Z.

Academic Achievement (Status)

R

No additional studentswill be identified as having a
SRD at the end of the school year, excluding students
on areading |EP and/or enrollment after October 1,
and 50% of students identified as having a SRD at
the beginning of the year will move off their READ
plans by the end of the year.

No additional studentswill be identified as having a
SRD at the end of the school year, excluding students
on areading |EP and/or enrollment after October 1,
and 70% of students identified as having a SRD at
the beginning of the year will move off their READ
plans by the end of the year.

We will track using DIBEL SNext, LexiaCore5, and



Planning Form

Major | mprovement
Strategy Name:

Major Improvement
Strategy Description:

Associated Root Causes:

lexile levels on Reading A-Z.

Implement a standards-based, common K-5 literacy curriculum

All teachers will provide instruction in the EngageNY literacy curriculum.
The curriculum is more rigorous that what has been taught over the last
two years, and in grades 3-5, the writing component is based on the texts
they read in class. Teachers will be properly trained prior to the school
year on the structure of the curriculum, as well as the scope and sequence,
how to implement the curriculum on adaily basis, and how to use various
assessments within the curriculum, including performance tasks. Teachers
will also work with teammates on a year-long pacing guide. At mid-year,
teachers will receive arefresher training and have the opportunity to
discuss what is working well with new the curriculum, what might be a
challenge, how differentiation can happen within the curriculum, and
teach sample lessons with constructive feedback. Teachers will receive
off-site training for literacy instructional strategies, formative and
summative assessment, and how to differentiate for both gifted and
talented students and special education students. Teachers will give
Director of Teaching and Learning weekly/unit literacy |esson plans that
outline standards, learning targets, differentiation, and assessment.

Lack of standards-based and school-wide literacy curriculum: For the past two years, teachers had to
find their own resources for literacy instruction, or adapt from the 10 year old curriculum that was no
longer aligned to standards. There was no vertical alignment from grade to grade, nor was there even
consistency within the same grade level.

I nadequate professional development: Teachers have not had proper and ongoing training in both
curriculum and instruction, specifically related to best practice in lesson planning, data analysis,
differentiation, and interventions.

Failureto set accountability expectations and protocols. There are no systemsin place regarding
standards-based lesson planning, progress monitoring, data analysis, teacher evaluations, and

communication with parents.

Action Steps Associated with MIS



Name Description Start/End Resource Key Status School Y ear
Date Per sonnel
Literacy All teachers 08/07/2017 EngageNY, Director of InProgress This School
Curriculum grades K-5will  05/24/2019  Colorado Teaching & Y ear
Implementation implement the Academic Learning,
& Alignment  standards-based Standards K-5 teachers
EngageNY
literacy
curriculum.
Teams will
map out a
pacing guide
for standards
covered within
the curriculum.
I mplementation Benchmark Associated with M1S
Action Step
Name IBName  Description Start/End/Repeats ﬁey Status SENEE.
- er sonnel Y ear
(Association)
Literacy Teacher Teachers 08/07/2017  Director of  Met This School
Curriculum Trainingon  will receive  05/25/2018  Teaching & Y ear
Implementation Literacy adequate and Learning
& Alignment,  Curriculum  ongoing
training and
resources to
effectively
implement
the new
curriculum
inthe
classroom.
Literacy Effective Teacherswill 08/07/2017  Director of  Met This School
Curriculum Lesson learn the 08/21/2017 Teaching & Y ear
Implementation Planning for essential Learning
& Alignment, Literacy components of
alesson plan,
including
standards-based
learning
targets,
differentation,
and
assessment.
Literacy Effective Teachers 08/07/2017  Director of  Met This School
Curriculum Lesson will be 05/24/2019  Teaching & Y ear
Implementation Planning for requiredto  Weekly Learning
& Alignment,  Literacy turnin



Literacy Instructional
Curriculum Reviewsfor
Implementation Literacy

& Alignment,

Major | mprovement
Strategy Name:

Major Improvement
Strategy Description:

Associated Root Causes:

weekly/unit
plansto
Director of
Teaching
and
Learning.

Teachers 08/07/2017  Director of  Partially Met This School
will meet 05/24/2019  Teaching & Y ear
one-on-one  Quarterly Learning

with

Director of

Teaching &

Learning to

discuss their

instructional

practices and

professional

devel opment

goasin

literacy.

Establish teacher accountability expectations

Teachers will be required to turn in weekly or unit lesson plans that
include standards-based learning targets, differentiation strategies, and
how assessment will be used to further inform instruction. Prior to this
requirement, teachers will receive training at preservice regarding the
essential components of alesson plan. Teachers will also be trained on the
state's Teacher Quality Standards and how they will be evaluated on them.
Teachers will receive training on both DibelsNext and MAPS, specifically
on how to access and utilize various reports to inform instruction.
Teachers will meet as primary and intermediate teams every other week
have have data discussions with a data protocol analysis form to guide the
discussions led by the team leads. At the meetings, teachers will also
continue to learn how to use MAP Skills as a progress monitoring tool and
additional way to find and teach to gaps within student learning. Team
leads will attend additional off-site training regarding MAP testing and
data analysis. Teacherswill set an individual and team goal at the
beginning of the year and have Instructional Reviews four times
throughout the school year with the Director of Teaching & Learning to
discuss and update goals. Teachers will communicate consistently with
parents about academics and eventsin the classroom, and ways families
can support learning at home.

Failureto set accountability expectations and protocols: There are no systems in place regarding
standards-based |esson planning, progress monitoring, data analysis, teacher evaluations, and

communication with parents.



I nadequate professional development: Teachers have not had proper and ongoing training in both
curriculum and instruction, specifically related to best practice in lesson planning, data analysis,
differentiation, and interventions,

Action Steps Associated with MI'S

Name

Interim
testing and
Progress
Monitoring

Instructional
Reviews

Dataanalysis

Description

Grades K-5
will use

MAP testing
for both
interim and
progress
monitoring
instead of
Scantron.
Teachers will
be trained on
using new
system and
how to
access and
utilize data
for
instruction.

Teachers will
meet
one-on-one
with Director
of Teaching
& Learning
to discuss
instructional
practices and
professional
goals four
times per
year.

Teachers will
hold regular
data
meetings
with team
leads to
discuss
MAP,
DIBELS, and
classroom

Start/End
Date

08/07/2017
11/01/2017

08/07/2017
05/24/2019

10/02/2017

Resour ce

NWEA

Teacher

Quality
Standards

NWEA,
DIBELS,
curriculum

Key
Per sonnel

Director of
Teaching &
Learning

Director of
Teaching &
Learning

Team Leads

Status

Complete

In Progress

In Progress

School Year

This School
Y ear

This School
Y ear

This School
Y ear



assessment
data.
Teachers will
look at both
interim data
aswell as
progress
monitoring
data. A
distributed
form will be
used to guide
the meetings.

Parent Therewill be  01/08/2018 Teachers, Not Started  This School
Communication consistent 05/24/2019 Directors Y ear

school-wide

communication

with parents

regarding

academics,

school safety,

and eventsin

the form of

newsl etters,

conferences,

and events.

Implementation Benchmark Associated with M1S

Action Step Key School
Name IBName  Description Start/End/Repeats P Status
_ er sonnel Y ear

(Association)
Interim Ongoing Teacherswill 08/07/2017  Director of Partially Met  This School
testing and assessment receive 05/24/2019  Teaching & Y ear
Progress training ongoing Quarterly Learning,
Monitoring, training both Director of

on and Student

off-siteto Services

effective use

MAP

Growth and

MAP Skills

to find gaps

in student

learning and

inform

instruction.
Interim Required Teacherswill 08/07/2017  Director of Partially Met  This School
testing and data have primary 05/24/2019  Teaching & Y ear
Progress meetings and Monthly Learning,

Monitoring, intermediate Team Leads



Data
analysis,

Instructional
Reviews,

Instructional
Reviews,

Parent

Communication, Communication develop a

Required
lesson plans

Teacher
Goalsand
Professiond
Development

Parent

team
meetings,
lead by lead
teachers, to
discuss
student data
and Rtl.
Specific
formswill be
provided to
guide
discussions.
Meetings
will happen
monthly
during teams
freelunch
period.

Weekly/unit
lesson plans
including
standards-based
learning
targets,
differentiation,
and assessment
must be turned
in.

08/07/2017
05/24/2019
Weekly

Director of
Teaching &
Learning

08/07/2017
05/24/2019
Quarterly

Director of
Teaching &
Learning

All teachers
will set an
individual
goal at the
beginning of
the school
year and link
itto
professional
development.
We will
check on
goasduring
instructional
reviews. All
teachers will
attend at least
one off-site
training
related to
their goals.

Teachers will

template Weekly Admin

01/08/2018 Classroom
05/24/2019 Teachers,

Partially Met  This School
Y ear

Partially Met  This School
Y ear

This
School
Y ear

Not Met



together for
effective
communication
through

newsl etters.
Teacherswill
asoincludea
communication
log inside
Friday Folders
for easy
communication
between home
and school.
Guidelines will
be established
for what
graded work
should be sent
home and
when.

Parent Parent-Teacher An additional 08/20/2018 Classroom Not Met Next

Communication, Conferences

Major | mprovement
Strategy Name:

Major Improvement
Strategy Description:

parent-teacher 05/24/2019 Teachers, School
conference Admin Y ear
will be added

to the

2018-2019

calendar to

line up with

the trimesters.

Provide professional development and adequate resources for math
instruction

Teachers will receive training prior to the start of the school year on the
Singapore math curriculum purchased a year ago. Additional resources
including text books, assessment guides, online guides, and manipulatives
that correspond with the curriculum will be purchased for teacher and
student use in the classrooms. Teacherswill utilize MAP Skillsas an
additional tool to progress monitor student growth and provide
interventions. Teachers will receive a mid-year training on the math
curriculum to discuss what is going well, where difficulties might lie, and
how to best differentiate for all learners. Teachers will attend off-site
training on math instruction and how to use MAP Skillsto provide
additional support and interventions. Teachers will go beyond just the
practice of math skills but will also instruct studentsto use critical
thinking skills to solve problems, both within the curriculum through
structured problem solving guides, as well as when dealing with real-life
situations. Teachers will give Director of Teaching and Learning
weekly/unit math lesson plans that outline standards, |earning targets,
differentiation, and assessment.



Associated Root Causes:

Lack of teacher training and resour ces for new math curriculum: Teachers need adequate and
ongoing training and appropriate resources and student manipulatives in the Singapore math curriculum
that was adopted in 2016.

I nadequate professional development: Teachers have not had proper and ongoing training in both
curriculum and instruction, specifically related to best practice in lesson planning, data analysis,
differentiation, and interventions,

Failureto set accountability expectations and protocols. There are no systemsin place regarding

standards-based lesson planning, progress monitoring, data analysis, teacher evaluations, and
communication with parents.

Action Steps Associated with MI'S

Name Description ST Resource N Status School Y ear
Date Per sonnel

Math Teachers will 08/07/2017  Primary Director of  InProgress  This School
Professional receive 05/24/2019 Mathematics Teaching & Year
Development  ongoing Learning
for Effective professional
Implementation development

and resources

for effective

implementation

of Singapore

Math

curriculum.

Implementation Benchmark Associated with M1S

Action Step Key School
Name IB Name  Description Start/End/Repeats P Status
_ er sonnel Y ear
(Association)
Preservice Teacherswill 08/07/2017  Director of Partially Met  This School
Training be trained 05/24/2019  Teaching & Y ear
prior to Learning
school
starting as
well as
mid-year as
needed.
Resources Additional 08/07/2017  Director of  Met This School
for resources, 11/01/2017  Teaching & Y ear
Curriculum  including Learning

manipulatives,



Effective
Lesson
Planning for
Math

Effective
Lesson
Planning for
Math

Instructional
Reviews for
Math

AttachmentsList

online and
assessment
guides, will be
purchased for
more effective
implementation.

08/07/2017
08/21/2017

Director of
Teaching &
Learning

Teachers will
learn the
essential
components of
alesson plan,
including
standards-based
learning
targets,
differentiation
and
assessment.

08/07/2017
05/24/2019
Weekly

Director of
Teaching &
Learning

Teacherswill
be required
toturnin
weekly/unit
math plansto
Director of
Teaching &
Learning
08/07/2017

05/24/2019
Quarterly

Director of
Teaching &
Learning

Teacherswill
meet
one-on-one
with Director
of Teaching
and Learning
to discuss
their
instructional
practicesin
math.

UIP Attachment - 12/11/2017 12:26 PM .pdf

Met

Partialy Met

Partially Met

This School
Y ear

This School
Y ear

This School
Y ear



T.R. Paul Academy of Arts and Knowledge
2018-19 School Calendar

8/9 New teachers return
8/13 Seasoned teachers return 15 Parent Teacher Conferences
20/21 Pre-assessment Days All Day/No School
20 Back 2 School BBQ 4pm-6pm 18 President's Day / No School
22 First Day of School 19 Paragon Night
31 Respect Assembly @2:30pm 22 Respect Assembly @ 2:30pm
3 Labor Day / No School 1 Dr. Seuss Day/Parent's Night C
6 Parent Orientation Night 18-22 Spring Break / School Closed
20 Paragon Night 29 Respect Assembly @2:30pm
21 Teacher PD Day / No School
28 Respect Assembly @2:30pm
5 Camp Read A-Lot 16 Paragon Night
19 Parent Teacher Conferences 26 Respect Assembly @ 2:30pm
All Day/No School
26 Respect Assembly @2:30pm
10 Spring Play
14 Paragon Night 1| 2 3 1l 2 3| 4| 18 Arts Gala
16 Teacher PD Day / No School 5| 6 7| 8| 9 11| 29 Field Day
19-23 Fall Break / School Closed 12| 13| 14| 15| 16| 17 30 Respect Assembly @8:30am
30 Respect Assembly @2:30pm 19| 20| 21| 22| 23| 24| 25| 30 Last Day of School
26( 27( 28 31 Early Dismissal @ 12:30pm
Su |[M [Tu (W [Th |F Sa Start & End Dates
14 Fall Play 1 1 Significant Days
19 Winter Festival 2| 3 4 5 6| 7 8 2| 3| 4| 5| 6 7| 8 Staff Only / No Students
20 Respect Assembly @ 2:30pm 9| 10| 11| 12| 13 15 9| 10( 11| 12| 13| 14| 15 School Closed
21-31 Winter Break / School Closed | 16| 17| 18 21| 22 16| 17| 18| 19| 20| 21| 22 Summer Break/School Closed
23| 24| 25( 26| 27| 28| 29 23| 24| 25( 26| 27| 28| 29
30( 31 30 Start time: 8:10am
1-4 Winter Break Cont./Closed |Su [M |Tu [w [Th [F |[Sa Su (M [Tu |W |Th |F Sa
7 Teacher PD Day / No School 1 2 3| 4 5 11 2| 3| 4 5| 6 1055 Student Contact Hours
8 First Day Backtoschool | 6| 7] 8| o 10[ 11] 12 7| 8| of 10[ 11| 12| 13 173 Student Contact Days
14 MLK Day / No School 13| 14| 15| 16| 17| 18| 19 14| 15| 16| 17| 18| 19| 20 185 Staff Contact Days
25 Math Night 20| 21| 22| 23| 24 26 21| 22| 23| 24| 25| 26| 27
25 Respect Assembly @2:30pm | 27| 28| 29| 30 31 28( 29| 30( 31 Trimester End Dates:
Nov. 16, Mar 8, May 25
Board Approved:



T.R. Paul Academy of Arts and Knowledge
Early Admittance Policy

Purpose and Scope: The TR Paul Academy of Arts and Knowledge (TPAAK) Early
Admittance Policy is intended to provide documented guidelines to the operations contractor for
the allocation of available seats at TR Paul Academy of Arts and Knowledge for Acceleration
into Kindergarten.

Distribution: This policy shall be available for public viewing and acknowledgement of such
viewing shall be made part of the application process when submitting an application for Early
Admittance to TPAAK.

Declaration: By applying for Early Admittance into TPAAK all persons involved in the
application process declare that they have read and understand the Early Admittance policy of
TPAAK and will abide by this policy.

Definitions:

Early Admittance:

Early Admittance means early entrance to kindergarten or first grade for highly advanced
children under the age of six, and means a student is placed in a grade level above other same
aged peers.

Early Admittance shall be provided by TPAAK to identify and serve highly advanced children
who are:
1. Four years of age and for whom early admittance to kindergarten is deemed appropriate.
2. Five years of age and for whom early admittance to first grade is deemed appropriate.
3. Early admittance shall not be an acceleration pattern recommended for the majority of
age four or five children who will benefit from preschool programming.
4. The purpose of early admittance is to identify and serve the few highly advanced gifted
children who require comprehensive academic acceleration.

Early admittance decisions will be a consensus process within the determination team that
analyzes multiple criteria from a body of evidence resulting in a student profile of strengths,
needs and interests of the child. Test scores alone will not determine early admittance. Parents
may accept or decline an offer of early admittance.



T.R. Paul Academy of Arts and Knowledge
Early Admittance Policy

Early Admittance eligibility:
Applicants that wish to apply for kindergarten but are not five (5) years of age by October 1 in
the school year enrollment is being applied for must apply for Early Admittance prior to the

Applicants that wish to apply for first grade but are not six (6) years of age by October 1 in the
school year enrollment is being applied for must apply for Early Admittance prior to the lottery.

General:

Criteria for Early Admittance:
All criteria must be considered in making the determination - test scores alone do not meet

determination.

Aptitude:
Aptitude supporting early admittance is indicated by a highly advanced level of
performance compared to age-peers on cognitive abilities rating scales or 97
percentile and above on standardized cognitive ability tests which are conducted
by licensed and/or trained staff.

Achievement:
Achievement supporting early admittance is indicated by a highly advance level
of performance compared to age-peers on achievement rating scales, assessment,
or 97" percentile and above on standardized achievement tests. Typically, early
admittance children function two or more years above their age peers.

Performance:
Performance supporting early admittance is indicated by work samples and
informal teacher and/or parent data indicating demonstrated ability above age
peers.

Readiness, Social Behavior and Motivation:
Readiness, social behavior and motivation for early admittance are determined by
the child’s ability to demonstrate the indicators deemed necessary for
kindergarten or first grade by the district’s standards or national standards.



T.R. Paul Academy of Arts and Knowledge
Early Admittance Policy

Application Process:
Step 1:

1. Applications are initiated by a parent or legal guardian by filling out the online
application for enrollment at tpaak.org/enroll_now. Applications for Early Admittance
must be submitted by December 22nd™ in order to allow enough time to determine if the
student will be eligible for the lottery.

2. The GT Coordinator or Registrar contacts parents and obtains information about student
and reason for request. Parents are informed about the process.

3. If the parent decides to continue with the process, the parent collects information and
creates a portfolio about the child, including the necessary forms provided by the school.
In order to be considered for eligibility for the lottery, portfolios must be turned in no
later than January 8.

Information to be included in the portfolio:

I. Letter from parent requesting early admittance into kindergarten or first
grade including reason for request (i.e. observations of advanced behavior,
aptitude and achievement).

ii. The Behavior Assessment filled out by both the parent/guardian and the
preschool teacher.

iii. Any supporting anecdotal information (example: doctor’s
observations/reports, outstanding accelerated achievements, which could
include reading ability, musical ability, etc.).

iv. Any available test data, which may include private testing.

v. Student performance-work samples

vi. Any other items the parent may deem appropriate.

Step 2:

1. The parent sends the portfolio to the GT Coordinator no later than January 8 for
potential inclusion in the lottery.

2. Should the initial review of the portfolio demonstrate that the applicant is a strong
candidate for early admittance, the GT Coordinator will contact the parent within five
business days from receipt of the portfolio to schedule a time for further screening and
gain permission to evaluate applicant.

a. Should the initial review of the portfolio demonstrate that the applicant is not a
strong candidate for early admittance, the parent will be contacted within five
business days of the receipt of the portfolio and notified of the school’s decision
not to pursue further screening, and consequently the applicant will not be granted



3.

Step 3:

4.

T.R. Paul Academy of Arts and Knowledge
Early Admittance Policy

early admittance. Parents may dispute the school’s decision to deny early
admittance by following the school’s grievance policy.
Parents must pay a $200 testing fee for Wechsler Preschool and Primary Scale of
Intelligence (WPPSI-111) test administration. Scholarships or fee waiver may be available
based on financial situation.
If the decision is made to pursue testing, the GT Coordinator will schedule a testing date
to administer the WPPSI-I11 and NWEA Measures of Academic Progress administered
by qualified school personnel. To be considered for eligibility in the lottery, all testing
must be scheduled and completed with the school prior to January 31.

A body of evidence will be used to determine placement. Early admittance decisions will
be a consensus process within the school determination team that analyzes multiple
criteria from a body of evidence resulting in a student profile of strengths, needs and
interests of the child. Test scores alone will not determine early admittance. This will
include the student portfolio, information from the teacher, the results from the WPPSI-
[11 testing as well as the NWEA MAP Assessment and Behavior Assessment.

a. Results on behavioral, cognitive and achievement assessments need to fall at or
above the 97%ile. For behavioral and cognitive, assessments will be percentile
ranking compared to age level peers. For achievement testing, the score must be
at or above the 97%ile in